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Dear Sir, 

Pursuant to SEBI {List ing Obligations and Disclosure Req ui rements) Regulations, 2015 and applicable 

statutory provisions, please fi nd enclosed herewith t he Annua l Report of the Company for Financia l Year 

2021-22 along with Notice of Annua l General Meeting of the Members of the Company scheduled to be 

held on 301
h July 2022. 

Annua l Report along with Notice of the Annua l Genera l Meeting is available on t he Company's website 

www.varanasisangam.com. 

Kind ly take the above information on record . 

For Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 

Chi rag Gandhi 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
ICSI Membership No. ACSSS452 
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E-mail : hava@grinfra.com 

CIN:U45500RJ2017PTC057753 

r
<-:f..\lr~~_!1'c-1 v ,_,, . 

,!Jl' " --;)\ 

~) '~) 

~~~~ 
~37 



VARANASI SANGAM EXPRESSWAY 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given t hat the 5th (Fifth) Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the members of 
Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited ("the Company") will be held on Saturday 30th July 2022 
at 11:30 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company at GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector No. 11, Udaipur-
313002, Rajasthan to transact the following business : 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financia l Statements of the Company for the Financial 

Year ended 3l't March 2022 together with the Report of Auditors and Boa rd of Directors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Va run Bhasin {DIN: 03262761 ), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as 
Ordinary Resolution: 

3. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company. 

" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, of t he 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Aud it) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) , if any, consent of 
th e members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded for ratificat ion of remuneration of Rs. 
5,000 (R upees Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of actual out of pocket 
expenses, payable to M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati and Co., Cost Accountants, who were appointed by 
the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors t o conduct Cost Aud it of the Company as prescribed under 
th e Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014, for the fin ancial year 2022-23." 

Date: 06.07.2022 
Place: Gurugram 

NOTES: 

By the order of the Board of Directors, 

Ch'1l>1~ ~CA\l\dh .1 
Chirag Gandhi 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. ACS 55452 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATIEND AN D VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATIEND 
AND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HI MSELF AND TH E PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. 

Proxies, in order t o be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is appended with admission slip. 
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more 
than 10% of the tota l share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more t han 10% 
of the total share capital of t he company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and 
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

2. Any documents and papers as referred to in this notice and as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be 
avai lable for inspection between ll:OOAM to l :OOPM on all working days at the regist ered office of the 
Company and the same shall also be available during the meeting. 

3. The explanatory statement setting out material facts pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
relating to the special business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto. 

4. Details of Director retiring by rotation and seeking reappointment at the meeting are provided in the 

"Annexure-1" to th is Notice. 

Registered Office : 
GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector-11, Udaipur-313 002 (Raj.) 
Ph.: +91-294-2487370, 2483033, Fax : +91-294-24877 49 
E-mail : hava@grinfra.com 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 3 
The Board has approved t he appointment of the Cost Aud itors to conduct th e audit of t he cost records 
of the Company, for the for th e fina ncial year 2022-23 at a remuneration of Rs. 5000/- plus applicable 
taxes and actual out-of-pocket expenses. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit ) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by 
the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary 
Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the remunerat ion payable to the 
Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-23. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by 
the members. 

None of th e Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Date: 06.07.2022 
Place: Gurugram 

By the order of the Board of Directors, 

ch'il>1°;j ~CAV\clh .1 

Chirag Gandhi 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. ACS 55452 



Annexure-1 

Information of the Director seeking Appointment/Reappointment at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting (Pursuant to Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the ICSI) as on dat e of the Notice of Annua l 

General Meeting is as under: 

Name and DIN Mr. Varun Bhasin, DIN: 03262761 

Date of Birth/ Age 19th November 1979; 42 years 

Bachelor's degree (Honors) in commerce from Delhi University. He is 

Qualification Qualified Chartered Accountan t from the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). 

Experience and Expertise in 
He has over 19 years of experience in t he fie ld of Banking, Finance, 

specific functional area 
Audit, Interna l control, Compl iance, Taxation, Management 

Information System and Budgeting etc. 

Terms and condition of 

appointment along w ith Reappointment as Non-Executive Director 

details of remuneration Remuneration: Nil 

sought 

Last drawn remuneration, 
Nil 

if app licable 

Number of shares held in 

Varanasi Sangam Nil 

Expressway Private Lim ited 

No. of Board Meetings During t he FY2022 - Meetings eligible to attend 9 (N ine) and 

attended Meetings attended 9 (Nine) 

Original Date of 
1'1 March 2021. 

Appointment 

Relations hip wit h other 
Nil 

Directors 

• GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 

• GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

Other Directo rship he ld in • GR Sa ngli So lapur Highway Private Li mited 

Indian compan ies • GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited 

• GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited 

• Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited 

1) GR Phagwara Expressway Limited: 

• Chairperson of CSR Committee 
2) Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited: 

•Member of CSR Committee 

•Member o f Audit Committee 

Membership/Chairm an of 
•Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

the Committees in other 
• Chairperson of Stakeholder Relat ionship Committee 

Companies in India 
• Chairperson of Risk Management Committee 

3) GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limit ed 

• Chairperson of CSR Committee 

~) Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Privat e Limited 

• Member o f CSR Committee 

5) GR Akkalkot Solapu r Highway Pr ivate Limited 

• Chairperson of CSR Committee 
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VARANASI SANGAM EXPRESSWAY 

PRIVATE LIMITED 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 

ro 
The Members, 
Varanasi Sangam Expressw ay Private Limited 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 5th (Fifth) Annual Report on the business and operations of 
the Company together with the Audited Financia l Statements for t he year ended 3pt March 2022. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financi al highlights of t he Company for t he year ended 31st March 2022 are as under: 
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 

Revenue from Operations 13170.20 38791.25 

Other Income 327.70 106.13 

Total Revenue 13497.90 38897.38 

Less: Expenses 11160.37 29204.04 

Profit /(Loss) before tax 2337.53 9693.34 

Less: Tax Expense 589.74 3391.77 

Profit/(Loss ) afte r tax 1747.79 6301.57 

STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

During the year under review, the Company has reported Tot al Revenue of Rs. 13497.90 Lakhs as 
compared to Rs. 38897.39 Lakhs in financia l year 2020-21. 

Profit after Tax for t he yea r ended 31st March 2022 is Rs. 1747.79 Lakhs as against profit af ter Tax of Rs. 

6301.57 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2021. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There was no change in the nature of Company's business during t he Financial Year 2021-2022. 

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

During the year under review, there is no change in the capi t al struct ure of t he Company. The Aut ho rised 

Capital was Rs. 38,90,00,000 consisting of 3,89,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each and Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid up Capit al of the Company was Rs. 38,89,00,000 consisting of 3,88,90,000 Equity 
shares of Rs.10/- each. The Company has not issued any equity shares with different ial rights, sweat equity 

shares or bonus shares. 

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 

During the Financial Yea r, t he Company has issued and allotted Non-convert ible debentures (" NCD") on 
Private Placement basis: 

s. Description of NCD Face value Issue Size Name of Trustee 

No. Per NCD 

1 Senior Rated Listed Secured Non- Rs. 10 Lakh Rs. 784 Crores Axis Trustee Services 

Convert ib le Debenture Limited 

The detail of Debenture Trustee is available on the Company's website i.e . 

http://www.varanasisangam.com/contact-information/. 

DIVIDEND 
Considering the requirement of the funds for business operations of the Company, your directors think it 
prudent not t o recomme nd dividend fo r the fi nancia l yea r ended 3pt March 2022. 

Registered Office : 
GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector-11 , Udaipur-313 002 (Raj.) 
Ph.: +91-294-2487370, 2483033, Fax : +91-294-2487749 
E-mail : hava@grinfra.com 

CIN : U45500RJ2017PTC057753 



TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

During the yea r under review Company has t ransferred Rs. 7630.25 Lakhs to Debenture Redemption 
Reserve. 

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURES. 

The Company does not have any Subsid iary, Associate or Joint Venture Company. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

During the year unde r review, there were no significant and materia l orders pa ssed by any regulators or 
court s or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There have been no material changes and / or commitments affecting the financial position of your 

company w hich has occurred from the end of the financia l year upto the date of sign ing of this Report. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT 
Statutory Auditors 

M/s JLN US & Co., Chartered Accountants {FRN: 101543W} were appointed by the Shareholders at Annua l 

General Meeting of the Company held on 271h August 2018 as the Statutory Auditors for a period of five 
yea rs to hold office upto the conclusion of the 5th Annual General Meet ing. They have audi ted the financia l 

statements of the Company for the Financia l Yea r under review. The observations of Statutory Auditors 
in their Report read w ith relevant Notes to Accounts are self-explanatory and therefore, do not require 

further exp lanation. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualificat ion, reservation or adverse 
remark. Further, there was no incidence of fraud reported by the St atutory Auditors under sub-section 
(12) of sect ion 143 other than those which are report able to the Centra l Government. 

Internal Auditor 

In accordance with t he provisions of Section 138 of t he Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nayan Jain, Chartered 
Accountant (M. No. 445570} was appointed as an interna l auditor with effect from 20th February 2021, 
however he resigned from the office of Interna l Auditor with effect from 5th March 2022 . 

Secretarial Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 204 of t he Companies Act, 2013, the Company had appointed M/s. Bharat Choudhary 

& Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, as its Secretaria l Auditors to conduct the secretarial audit 
of the Company for the FY 2021-22. The Report of Secretarial Aud itors for the FY 2021-22 is annexed to 
this report as Annexure -1. The report does not contain any qualification, reservat ion or adverse remark. 

Cost Auditors 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records 

are made and maintained. 

M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants have audited the Cost Statements of the Company and 
submitted the Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022. The report does not contain 
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

Further, t he Board has approved appointment of M/s Rajendra Singh Bhat i & Co., Cost Accountant s as 
Cost Aud itors for the financial year ended 31st March 2023. The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 

is required to be ratified by the members, the Board recommends the same for approva l by members at 

the ensuing Annual General M eeting. 



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Va run Bhasin (DIN : 03262761), Directo r 
of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered 
himse lf for re-appointment. The Boa rd of Directors recommends his re-appointment . 

During the Financia l Year under review M embers of the Company at Annual General Meeting held on 30th 
Sept ember 2021 have regularized Mr. Va run Bhasin (DIN: 03262761) as Director from Additional Director 
of the Company, Further Ms. Riya Parakh (DIN: 08769864) ceased to be Director ofon 2nd November 2021, 
consequently the members in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 16th November 2021, 
appointed Ms. Suhani Jain (DIN: 08559224) as Director. 

Mr. Karan Agarwa l was ceased to be the Chief Financia l Officer of the Com pany on 281h March 2022. 
Thereafter Ms. Namita Somani was appointed as Chief Financia l Officer of the Company on 29th March 
2022. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors 
Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that : 
a) In preparation of Annual Accounts for the Financia l Year 2021-2022, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and there are no materi al departures; 
b) They have selected such Accounting policies and app lied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are rea sonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the st ate of affa irs of the 
Company at the end of financial year and of the Profit of the Company for the fina ncial yea r; 

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the 
maintenance of adequate account ing records in accordance with the provisions of the Act fo r 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and det ecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d} They have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
e) The Company being un listed sub clause (e) of Section 134(3) is not applicab le. 
f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance w ith the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effective ly. 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
As the Company is not req uired t o have an Independent Director. Thus, the requirement to obtain 
declaration from Independent Director is not applicable on the Company. 

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & 
OUTGO 
The provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Act rega rding conservation of Energy and Technology 
Absorption are not applicable to the Company. Further there was no foreign exchange Inflow or Outflow 
during the year under review. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibi lity ("CSR") Committee in acco rdance with 
provisions of Section 135 of the Compan ies Act, 2013. The CSR initiat ives undertaken by your Company, 
along with other details for the Financial Yea r 2021-22 and sal ient features on CSR policy forms part of 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as Annexure -II to this Directors Report. During the year 
under review One Meeting of the Committee was held on 9th June 2021. 



DEPOSITS 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
During the Financia l Year 2021-2022, all Related Party Transactions entered into by your Company with 
related parties were in ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis. Further, details of material 
contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company at arm's length basis are disclosed in Form 
AOC-2 as Annexure-111 to the Director's Report. 

The required information in compliance with the Accounting Standard on Related Party Disclosures as 
required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is 
disclosed at Financial Statements form ing part of the Annual Report of the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
During the Financial year under review, there was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits 
prescribed by provision of Section 197(12) read w ith Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Manageria l Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Act. 

Further, disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given below: 

Name Designation Qualification Work Age Date of Remuneration Previous 

Experience Commencement paid in FY Employment 

of Employment 2021-22 

Mr. Chirag Company CS, B.com 4 Years 28 Years 01.04.2020 Rs. 6.00 Lakhs GR 

Gandhi Secretary Infra projects 

' Limited 

None of the employee of the Company holds any equity share of the Company nor is relative of any 
Director or KMP of the Company. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 
Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, mora l, and legal business conduct. 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors has formulated Vigil Mechanism wh ich provides a robust framework 
for dealing with genuine concerns & grievances. Specifica lly, employees can raise concerns regarding any 
discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any 
instances of fraud by or against your Company. During Financial Year under review, no complaint was 
received by the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
Your company has neither made any loan or Investment, nor any guarantee has been given. Your 
Company falls w ithin scope of the definition "Infrastructure Company" as provided by the Companies Act, 
2013. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act with regards to 
loans, Guarantees and Investments. 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and the ind ividua l Directors was carried out for 
Financia l Year 2021-2022. Led by the Board of Directors, the evaluation was carried out using individual 
questionnaires covering, amongst others, composition of Board, conduct as per Company va lues & beliefs, 
contribution towards development of the strategy & business plan, risk management, receipt of regular 
inputs and information, codes & policies for strengthening governance, functioning, performance & 



structure of Board, skil l set, know ledge & expertise of Directors, preparation & contribution at Board 
meet ings, leadership, etc. 

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Detail of meeting of Board of Directors held during the year alongwith attendance of directors therein are 
as under: 

S. No. Dat e o f Meet ing M r. Vikas Agarwal Ms. Riya Parakh* M r. Varun Bhasin Ms. Suhani Jain** 

1. 26.05.2021 Yes No 

2. 10.06.2021 Yes No 

3. 17.06.2021 Yes No 

4. 17.09.2021 Yes No 

5. 12.10.2021 Yes No 

6. 02.11.2021 Yes NA 

7. 16.12.2021 Yes NA 

8. 31.01.2022 Yes NA 

9. 28.03.2022 Yes NA 

Meet ings eligible to attend 9 5 
Meetings attended 9 0 

* Ms. Riya Parakh has resigned from Directorship with effect from 2n<1 November 2021. 

**M s. Suhani Jain was appointed as Director with effect from 161h November 2021. 

Yes NA 

Yes NA 

Yes NA 

Yes NA 

Yes NA 

Yes NA 

Yes No 

Yes Yes 

Yes No 

9 3 

9 1 

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Your Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee, its composition as well as charter are in line with 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with regulations made in this regard . As on 31st March 
2022, three meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 02nd November 2021, 31st January 2022 and 
28th March 2022, detail of which is as under: 

S. No. Name of M ember Designation Meetings eligible t o attend 

1 Mr. Vikas Agarwal Chairman 3 
2 Mr. Varun Bhasin Member 3 
3 Ms. Riya Parakh * Member 1 
4 Ms. Suhani Jain** Member 2 

*Ms. Riya Parakh ceased to become member with effect from 2nd November 2021. 

**Ms. Suhani Jain was appointed with effect from 16th December 2021. 

M eetings attended 

3 

3 

0 
0 

During the year under review, all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by 
the Board. 

NOMINATION & REMUN ERATION COMMITTEE 
Your Company has a duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee, its composition as well 
as charter are in line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with regulations made in this 
regard. As on 31st March 2022 two meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held 
on 17th December 2021 and 28th March 2022, detail of which is as under: 

S. No. Name of M ember Designation M eetings eligible to attend Meetings attended 

1 Mr. Vikas Agarwa l Chairman 2 2 
2 Mr. Varun Bhasin Member 2 2 

3 Ms. Suhani Jain Member 2 0 



During the year under review, al l the recommendations made by the Nom ination and Remuneration 
Committee were accepted by the Board. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITIEE 

Your Company has a du ly constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee, its composition as we ll as 
charter are in line with the requ irements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read w ith regulations made in this regard. As 
on 31st March 2022, one meeting of the Stakeholders Re lat ionship Committee was held on 17th December 

2021, details of which is as under: 

S. No. Name of Member Designation Meetings eligible to attend Meetings attended 

1 Mr. Va run Bhasin Chairman 1 1 

2 Mr. Vikas Agarwa l Member 1 1 

3 Ms. Suhani Ja in Member 1 0 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITIEE 
Your Company has a duly constituted Risk Management Committee, its composition as we ll as charter are 

in line w ith the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listi ng Obligat ions 
and Disclosure Requi rements) Regulations, 2015 read with regulat ions made in this regard . As on 31st 

March 2022, two meetings of the Risk Management Committee were held on 17th December 2021 and 
23th March 2022, details of which is as under: 

S. No. Name of Member Designation Meetings eligible to attend Meetings attended 

1 Mr. Va run Bhasin Cha irm an 2 2 
2 Mr. Vikas Agarwal Member 2 2 

3 Ms. Suhani Ja in Member 1 0 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Your Company has a strong and well embedded system of internal contro ls. This ensures that all assets 
are safeguarded and prot ected against loss from unau thorized use or disposition and all transactions are 
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The internal contro l system has been designed to ensure 
that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other statemen ts and for 

mainta ining accountability of assets. During the year, such cont rols were tested and no reportab le 

material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The provisions of Sexua l Harassment of Woman at Workp lace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressa l) Act, 

2013 are not applicable on the Company. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by Institute of Companies 

Secretaries of Ind ia i.e. SS-1 & SS-2 on meetings of the Board of Directors and Genera l Meetings, 
respect ively. 

ANNUAL RETURN 
Pursuant t o Section 92(3) re ad with Section 134(3)(a) of t he Act, the Annual Return as on 31st March 2022 

is available on the Company's website on http://www.va ranasisa ngam.com/. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

1. The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending under t he 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

2. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institutions, 

hence disclosure under rule (8)(S)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable. 

:; 
· / _,,.,. 



LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 

The NCD(s)were listed its Non Convertible debentures on Wholesale Debt Market Segment on BSE Limited 
("BSE" ) on 22nd June 2021. The annua l listing fee for the Financia l Year 2022-23 has been paid to BSE. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Board acknowledges the support and co-operation rece ived from all its stakeholders including our 
dear shareholders as wel l as regulatory authorities of the Central Government and all State Governments 
in India as they endeavor to create an enabling environment for industry and commerce to prosper. 

Your Directors also take this opportun ity to express their gratitude for the va luable assistance and the 
trust placed by the Nationa l Highways Authority of India, bankers, vendors, customers, advisors and t he 
general public towards the Company. 

Dat e: 19.05.2022 
Place: Gurugram 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Varun Bhasin 
Director 
DIN:03262761 

Vikas Agarwal 
Director 
DIN: 03113689 



OS 
• 

Bharat Choudhary & Associates 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 
Mail Id: csaudrl 9@gmail.com 

TO, 

Form No MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

(For the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2022) 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

THE MEMBERS, 
VARANASI SANGAM EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED, 
(CIN: U45500RJ2017PTC057753) 
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR NO. 11, 
UDAIPUR, RAJASTHAN--313002 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 
Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and autJ:10rized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period April 01, 2021 
to March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed here under to this Report 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited (the Company) for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions (to the extent 
applicable) of; 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there 
under 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed hereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 
under to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial borrowings 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-

a) 

b) 
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, now known as SEBI (Share 
based Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014-

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021and 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998 

6. have also examined compliance with Secretarial Standards with respect to 
Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

We further report that 

);;;> The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

);;;> Adequate notice has been given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and 
a system exists for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

> All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously 
/with requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of 

Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be 

);;;> During the period under review the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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(iii) Ms. Suhani Jain (DIN: 08559224) has appointed as Director of the Company 
with effect from 16th November 2021. 

(iv) Mr. Karan Agarwal resigned as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 28th 
March 2022. 

(v) Ms. Namita Somani has appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 
29th March 2022. 

(vi) Listed NCO of 7,840 (Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and Forty) listed, 
secured, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures each having a face 
value of INR 10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) at par, upto an 
aggregate subscription amount of INR 784,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Seven 
Hundred and Eighty Four Crores Only) 

For BHARAT CHOUDHARY & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

~ 
<t>\/\or: 

M. No.: F10700 
CoP:14489 

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19/05/2022 
UDIN:F010700D000336344 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of ~ven date which is annexed as "ANNEXURE-
1" and forms an integral part if this report. 
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"ANNEXURE-1" 

TO, 
THE MEMBERS, 
VARANASI SANGAM EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED, 
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR NO. 11, 
UDAIPUR-313002, RAJASTHAN 

My report of given date is to be read along with this letter. 

A. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on my audit. 

B. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 
records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed 
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

C. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
books of accounts of the Company. 

D. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

E. The compliance of provisions of Corpo~ate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

F. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19/05/2022 
UDIN:F010700D000336344 
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ANNEXURE-11 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the 
company: 

Va ranasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited as a 
responsible corporate entity commits to undertake 
appropriate CSR measures having posit ive economic, 
social, and environmental impact to t ransform lives and to 
help build more ca pable and vibrant communities by 
integrat ing its bu siness va lues and strengths. 
In its continuous efforts to positively impact the society 
and to target the inclusive growth of all the st akeholders, 
the Company has formulated a guiding pol icy 
concentrat ing mainly on promot ing education, 
environment sustainability, economic empowerment, 
rural development, health care and san itation. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

S. No. Name of director Designation/ Number of Number of 
Nature of meetings of meetings of CSR 
Directorship CSR Committee Committee 

held during the attended during 
year the year 

1 Mr. Vikas Agarwa l Chairman 1 1 
2 Mr. Varun Bhasin* Member 1 1 

* Mr. Va run Bhasin appo inted member of CSR Committee with effect from 261
h M ay 2021. 

3. Provide th e web-link w here Composition of CSR http://www.varanasisangam.com/wp­
committ ee, CSR Po licy and CSR projects content/t hemes/grwama/images/pdf/policies 
approved by the board are disclosed on the /VSEPL-CSR-Policy.pdf 
websit e of the company. 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR Not Applicable 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 
of ru le 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibi lity Policy) Rul es, 2014, if app lica ble 
(attach the report). 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of ru le 7 of the Companies (Corporate 

Socia l respons ibility Policy) Ru les, 2014 and amount requ ired for set off for t he fina ncial year, if any. 

S. I Financial Year I Amount available for set-off from I Amount required to be setoff for the 
No. preceding financi al years (in Rs. Lakhs) financial year, if any (in Rs. Lakhs) 

NIL 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Net Loss of Rs. 5789.15 Lakhs 

7. (a) Two perce nt of average net profit of the company as per sect ion 135(5): Net Loss of Rs. 
115.78 Lakhs 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programm es or activities of the -

previous financial years. 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financia l year, if any. -

(d) Total CSR obligation for the finan cial year (7a + 7b + 7c) -

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount Amount Unspent 
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second provi so to section 135(5). 
(in Rs. Lakhs) section 135(6). . 



(1) 

s. 
No 

(1) 
s. 
No. 

I 
Amount 

(in Rs. Lakhs) 
I Date of transfer I Name of Fund I Amount I Date of t ra nsfer 

(in Rs. Lakhs) 

Not Applicable 

(b) Deta ils of CSR amount spent aga inst ongoing projects for the fi nancia l yea r: 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Name of Item Loe Location of Proje Amou Amo Amount Mod Mode of 
the Project from the al the ct nt unt transferr e of Implementation 

list of are project dura allocat spent ed to lmpl -
activities a ti on ed in the Unspent eme Through 
in (Ye for the cur re CSR nta Implementing 
Schedule s/N projec nt Account tion - Agency 
VII to the o) State Distri t fin an for the Di rec Name CSR 
Act. ct (in Rs. cial project t Regist 

Lakhs) Year as per (Yes/ ration 
(in Section No). numb 
Rs. 135(6) er 
Lakhs (in Rs. 

) Lakhs) 

Not Applicable 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year : 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Name of the Item Lo ca Location of the Amount Mode Mode of 

Project from the I project spent for of implementation -
list of area the Im pl em Through implementing 
activities (Yes project entatio Agency 
in /No) State District (in Rs. n - Name CSR 
schedule Lakhs) Direct registration 
VII to the (Yes/No number. 
Act. ) 

Not Applicable 

(d ) Amount spent in Adm inistrative Overheads -

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable -

(f) Total amount spent for Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) -

(g) Excess amount fo r set off, if any. 

S. No. Particular Amount (in Rs. Lakhs) 

i. Two percent of average net prof it o f t he company as per section 135(5) (115.78) 

ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Yea r Nil 

iii. Excess amount spent fo r the f inancial year [(ii)-( i)) Nil 

iv. Surplus arising out of th e CSR project s or prog rammes or activit ies of the Nil 
previous fin ancia l years, if any 

v. Amount ava ilable for set off in succeed ing financial yea rs [(iii)-(iv)) Nil 

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial yea rs: 

S. No. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount remaining 

Financial Year transferred to spent in fund specified under Schedule to be spent in 

Unspent CSR the 
Account under reporting 

section 135 (6) Financial 
(in Rs. Lakhs) Year 

VII as per section 135(6), if 

any. 

Name Amount Date of 
of the (in Rs transfer 

Fund Lakhs) . 

succeeding financial 
years. (in Rs. Lakhs) 

' 

' '/ 
~- . 

·~--



I (in Rs. 
Lakhs) 

Not applicable 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of t he preceding financial yea r(s): 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

s. Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of 
No ID the Year in duration amount spent on amount the 

Project. which the allocated the project spent project -
project was for the in the at the end of Completed 

commenced project reporting reporting /Ongoing. 
(in Rs. Financial Financial 
Lakhs) Year (in Year (in Rs. 

Rs. Lakhs) Lakhs) 

Not applicable 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 

acquired through CSR spent in the financial yea r (asset - wise deta ils) 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creat ion or acquisition of ca pita l asset. 

(c) Deta ils of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose 
name such capita l asset is regist ered, their address etc. 
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired 
(including complete address and location of the capital asset). 

11. Specify t he reason(s), if t he company has Not Applica ble 
failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per section 135(5). 

For and on behalf of the Board, 

Varun Bhasin 
Director 
DIN :03262761 

Vikas Agarwal 
Chairman (CSR Committee) 
DIN: 03113689 

Not Applica ble 

Not Applicable 
Not App lica ble 

Not Applicable 



ANNEXURE -Ill 

Form No. AOC-2 
{Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section {3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2} of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014} 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

Name(s) of the related Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Date(s) of Amount paid Date on which the special 
party and nature of contracts/ arrangem the contracts or approval by as advances resolution was passed in 
relationship ent/transactions contracts I arrangements or the Board, if (if any) general meeting as required 

arrangeme transactions including any: under first proviso to section 
nts/transac the value, if any: 188 
tions 

Not Appl icable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

Name(s) of the related 

party and nature of 
relationship 

G R lnfraprojects Limited 
("GRIL" ) 
(Holding Company) 

Nature 

contracts/ 
arrangement/ 
transactions 

of Duration of 

contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

the 

Operation and The contract shall 

Maintenance 
Agreement 
("O&M") 

remain in force w.e.f. 
2nd November, 2021 

and shall rem ain in 
force for one Year 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any: 

O&M Agreement Date: 2nd November 2021 

Amount of Contract: Rs. 5.60 Crore 

Subject Matter: Operation & Maintenance of the 
Project Highway i.e. Six- laning of Handia to Varanasi 
section of NH-2 from km 713.146 to km 785.544 in the 

state of Uttar Pradesh under NHDP phase-V on Hybrid 
Annuity Mode. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any: 

Not 
applicabl e 

Varun Bhasin 
Director 
DIN:03262761 

~::;ON~ 
Date: 19.05.2022 
Place: Gurugram 

Director 
DIN: 03113689 

Amount 
paid as 
advances 
(if any, in 
Rs. Lakhs) 

Nil 
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TO THE MEMBERS OF VARANASI SANGAM EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of VARANASI 
SANGAM EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2022, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by 
!CAI and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 
The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec~ion with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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Independent Auditors ' Report on standalone financial statements (Continued) 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
fo r ensur ing the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material 
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

( e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure II. 
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
material impact its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any 
provisioning 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN1~: 

~/. 
CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN: 22400828AJLROQ4899 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of VARANASI SANGAM 
EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022 

i) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
fixed assets in existence with company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly 
the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

ii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities 
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements 
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting 
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. 
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly 
reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service 
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities in India. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31, 
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of 
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during 
the year. 

ix) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information 
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions. 
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture 
Holders. 

x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for 
which they were taken. 

xi) (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the 
management, the money raised by way of listed debt instruments and has been 
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has made 
preferential allotment or private placement of non convertible debentures during 
the year under review and the requirement of section 42 and 62 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount raised have been used for the 
purposes for which the funds were raised. 

xii) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the 
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the 
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we 
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

xiii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date 
for the period under audit. 
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xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xix) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. 

xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India, 1934. 

xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to 
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN{°\\\ 

~/~ 
CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN: 22400828AJLROQ4899 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 
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Annexure - II to the Independent Auditors Report 

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of VARANASI SANGAM 
EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VARANASI 
SANGAM EXPRESSWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by !CAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN ~~W 

CAM~~~ria 
Partner 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
CIN U45500R)2017PTC057753 

Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2022 

Particula rs 

Assets 

Non-<:urrent assets 

(a) Financial assets 

(i) Other fjnanciai assets 

(b) Other non-<:urrent assets 

(c) Tax assets 

Total non-<:urrent assets 

Current assets 

(a) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other bank balances 

(iv) Other financial assets 

(bj Other current assets 
Total current assets 

Tota I assets 

Equity and liabilities 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 

Total equity 

LiabiHties 

Non-<:urrent liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade pa\'ables - total outstandinp; dues of 
(a) micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Ref Note No. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

4 

10 

11 

12 

22 

12 

B 

(o) creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 
Notes on financial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements . 

14 

15 

2-3 

4-34 

"'"""'""'""'''"'d"~-~ Uwa«~ 
For JLN US Ai'\ID COMPA~ra Kumar Agarwal Vikas Agarwal 

Chartt•rcd Accountants Chief E>..ecufjve ()fficer Director 
Firm's !leg. No. 101543\.V 

~;· 
CA Mahesh Menaria 

Pnrtner 

Membership No: 400828 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 Ma1' 2022 

Place· Gurugra:11 

Date : J 9 May 2022 

-

DIN: 03113689 

Place: Gurnb'Tam 

Date: 19 May 2022 

c 1n ; ,.., c.t.j 
'd~V\cl'"'i 

Chirag Gandhi 

Cu111pm11J Secretary 

ICSl l\"lemb. No.: AS.5452 

Place: Gurugrarn 
Date : 19 Mav 2022 

As at 

31 March 2022 

l, 10,570.69 

7,560.7•1 

1,569.70 

1,19,701.13 

282.49 

9,131.22 

410 .00 

6,925.47 

4,390.26 

21,139.44 

1,40,840.57 

3,889.00 

11,376.30 

15,265.30 

1,13,183.77 

4,203 .62 

1,17,387.39 

7,684.76 

360.76 

0.50 

141.86 

8,187.88 

1,25,575.27 

1,40,840.57 

(ill Lnk/15 

As at 

31 March 2021 

1,15,394.18 

11,683.86 

133.72 

1,27,211.76 

610.70 

1,302.30 

2,112.97 

9,457.13 

2,051.45 

15,534.55 

1,42,746.31 

3,889.00 

9,628.51 

13,517.51 

1,16,077.07 

3,613.87 

1,19,690.9-! 

5,519.73 

3,860.15 

0.40 

157.58 

9,537.86 

1,29,228.80 

1,42,746.31 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Varun Bhasin 

Director 
DrN : 03262761 

Place: Gurnb'Tam 

Date : 19 May 2022 

~\iX?~ 
~t>1/ 

Nan\ita Somani 

Chief Fi1w11cia/ Of!lca 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 Mav 2022 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
CIN U45500RJ2017PTC057753 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Incon1e 

Revenue from operatiort5 

Other income 
Total income 
Expenses 

Construction costs 

Employee benefits expense 
Fina nee costs 

Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 

Current tax 

Deferred tax charge 
Total tax expenses 

Profit for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per share 

(Nominal value of share Rs.10 each) 
Basic (Rs.) 

Diluted (Rs.) 

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 
Notes on financial statements 

The notes rderred above are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 
Ornrtcred Accountmits 
Firm's Reg. No. 101543W 

~/- I 

i'v1embership No: 400823 
P!ace: Uda ipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

~ 
Chief Executive Officer 

Place: Gurugram-- -

Date : 19 May 2022 

Ref Note No. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

22 

30 

30 

2-3 

4 - 34 

?'in Lak/is 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

13,170.20 

327.70 

13.497.90 

749.00 

6.00 

9,704.24 

701.13 

11,160.37 

2,337.53 

589.74 

589.74 

1,7-17.79 

1,747.79 

4.49 

4.49 

38,791.25 

106.13 

38,897.38 

19,138.04 

4.90 

9.470.47 

590.63 

29,204.04 

9,693.34 

3,391.77 

3,391.77 

6,301.57 

6,301.57 

16.20 

16.20 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

u~d~~ 
Vikas Agarwal 
Directvr 

DIN : 03113689 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 19 l\fay 2022 

c l"I ;u-i tt-d 
~Cl\11 clhi 

Chirag Gandhi 

Co111pn11y Secrcta01 
JCS! Memb. No.: A55452 
Place: Gurugram 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Varun Bhasin 
Director 

DIN : 03262761 

Place: Gurugram 

Date : 19 May 2022 

' 

Q ~~~ 
~~ 

Namita Somani 

Chief Finmzcial Ojfica 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 Mav 2022 



Notes: (continued} 

3. Changes in liabilities arising from fi nancing activities in ten11s of Ind AS 7: fin Laklts 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Non-current borrowing'3 
Current borro ..... ·ings 

Non-curren t borrmvings 
Current borrov;;ings 

4 Figures in brackets represent outflO\\.'S. 

Total 

Total 

Basis of prepar.Jtion, measurement and significant accountins poUcie~ 
Notes on financial statements 

TI1e notes referred abov~ are an integTal part of lhf?Se financial statements 

/\s per our report of even d,1te attached 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 

Chartered Aaom1ta11ts 

F~r 1'sRe): No 101543W 

/. -J ...., 

Part11er 

Membership No: 400828 
Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19 May 2022 

~.:~ 
ChiPf ExecutivP Officer 

Plclce: Gurugram 

Dale · 19 ~fa\' 2022 

As at 

1 April 2021 

1,16,ll/ 1.07 

3,319.73 

1,21,596.80 

As at 

1 April 2020 

92,117.32 

329.95 

93,107.27 

2 - 3 
4 - 34 

Net cash flow 

(9,393.Cl3J 

(9,393.03) 

Net cash flow 

l9,0l9.06 

19,019.06 

DIN: 031 l3b89 
PJ,1ce: Guru gram 
Date: 19 May 2022 

c_\'\ \ V1~ 
'J ~111dh1 

Chirag Gandhi 

Coll!p.111y SccretM}/ 

JCS! Memb. No.: A55452 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 19 May 2022 

Others 
As at 

31 March 2022 

6A99.73 1;[3,183.11 

2,165.03 7,684.76 

8,664.76 1,20,868.53 

Others 
Asat 

31 March 2021 

4,280.69 1,l 6,077.07 

5,189.78 5,519.73 

9,470.47 1,21,596.80 

For and on behalf of the Board of Di.rectors 

Varun Bhasin 

Director 
DIN : 03262761 

Place: Guru gram 
Date: 19 M,1y 2022 

Namita Som,rni 

Ch:ef Finanfial Offi!"er 

Place: Ud aipur 
Date : 19 May 2022 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
C!N U45SOORJ2017PTC057753 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31March2022 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Balance as at l April 2020 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period en ors 

01anges in equity share capital dming the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at commencement of year 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2021 

Profit for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2022 

Profit for the year 

Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes 

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 
Notes on financ ial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of ever> date attached 

F0<)LNUSANDCOMPANY~~ 
Chnrtered Accountants 
Firm's Heg. No. 101543W 

Parh:c~· 

Membership No: 400828 
Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19 May 2022 

Chief Executi• ·c Ofhcer 

Place: G:.H"ugrr. n1 

Date: 19 Me.y 2022 

{in Lnk/1s 

Number of shares Amount 

3,88,90,000 3,889.00 

Retained Earnings 

3,326.94 

6,301.57 

9,628.51 

1,747.79 

(7,630.25) 

(5,882.46) 

3,746.05 

2-3 

4- 34 

-

-
3,88,90,000 

-
-

3,88,90,000 

Debenture 
redemption 

resen:e 

-

7,630.25 

7,630.25 

7,630.25 

-
3,889.00 

-
-

3,889.00 

Total 

3,326.94 

6,301.57 

9,628.51 

1,747.79 

1,747.79 

11,376.30 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Director 
DlN: 03113689 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: 19 May 2022 

c:l,101~ 
dt.1\/\dh'1 

Chirag Gandhi 
Compnny St!cr£'i11ry 

ICSI Memb. No.: A55452 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 19 May 2022 

Varun Bhasin 

Director 
DI N: 03262761 

_Place: Gurugram 
Date: 19 l\·!ay 2022 

Namita Somani 

Chief Fiwmcinl Officer 

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19 Mav 2022 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
CIN U45500RJ2017fTI'C057753 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit before ta.x 
Adjustments for: 

lnterest inc(lme 
Finance costs 

Working capital adjustments : 

Dt:.'CTcasc / (increase) in finandal ai1d non~financial assets 
Oecn~·,1se / (incredse) in trade receivables 
(Decrease)/ increase in trade payables 
(Decreast:>) in provi5-ions, financial and non·financia! liabilities 

Cash generated /(used in) from operating activities 
Income tax paid (net) 
Net cash generated/ (used in) from operating activities (A) 

C.1sh flows from investing <ictivities 

Interest receiv~d 
(Investments)/ Redemptivn::> of bank deposits (nt:~t) 

Net cash generated/ (used in) from investing activities {B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Interest paid 
Repayment of non-cu rrent borrowings 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 

Net cash {used in)/ generated from financing act ivities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 

Notes: 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (refer note S} 

Cash and cash t."qUivalcnts 

Balances wi th bank;: 
- Current accounts 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flow 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

2,337.53 

(327.70) 
9,704.2~ 

11,714.07 

9,139.47 

328 .21 
(3,499.39) 

(15.62) 

17,666.74 
(1,435.%) 

16,230.76 

327.70 
1,702.97 

2,030.67 

(8,664.76) 
(23,756.75) 
21 ,989.rti 

(10,432.51) 

7,828.92 

1,302.30 

9,131.:2 

.A..s at 

31 March 2022 

9,131.22 
9,131.22 

9,131.22 

~in l..J?khs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

9.693.34 

(75.98) 
9,470.~7 

19,087.83 

(38,J 20.42) 
(223.87) 

J,601.08 

(293.5•1) 

(17,948.9~) 

1.164.03 

(16,784.89) 

75.93 
(2,112.97) 

(2,036.99) 

(7.697.86) 

26.716.92 

19,019.06 

197.l~ 

1,105.13 

1,302.30 

As at 

31 l\'larch 2021 

1,302.30 
1,302.30 

1,302.30 

2 The above Statement of Cash FlO\\' has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in lndi<m Account ing Standard (lnd AS) - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

-



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
for tlze year ended 31March2022 

1. Reporting entity 

Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited ('the Company') having Registered office at GR House, Hiran 
Magri, Sector 11, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313002 was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, India on April 17, 2017 
as a Private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') as a subsidiary of G R Infraprojects 
Li1nited. 

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and transfer basis, 
("DBOT Annuity" or "Hybrid Annuity") the project relating to Six Laning of Handia Varanasi Section of l\.TH 
-2 from km 713.146 to km 785.544 (Approx.72.398 km) in the State of Uttar Pradesh under NHDP Phase -V on 
Hybrid annuity mode. The company has entered into concession agreement ·with the National Highway 
Authority of India ("NHAI") dated 21st August, 2018. 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on 
May 19, 2022. 

2. Basis of preparation 

a. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies 
Act, 2013, (the 'Act'), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) {Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Functio11al and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

c. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using accrnal basis of accounting except 
certain financial instruments measured at fair values. 

d. Use of estimates and judgments 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes: 

Recognition of Current / Deferred tax expense 
Revenue recognition under service concession arrangement 
Provision for doubtful debts 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for tlze year ended 31 March 2022 

e. Measurement of fair values 

Some of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This 
includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value 
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer. 

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 
If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial · 
reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these 
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the 
valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows. 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of 
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers beh·veen levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following 
notes: 

Investments 
Financial instruments 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for tlze year ended 31 March 2022 

3. Significant accounting polices 

a. Foreign currency transaction 

Transactions in foreign cunencies are h·anslated into the respective functional currencies of the Company 
at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated .in foreign currencies are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

b. Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured 
at fair value except Trade receivable which is measured at transaction price in accordance with Ind AS 
115. Transaction price that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction price directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right (not 
contingent on future events) to off-set the recognised amounts either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition 
or issue. 

ii Classification and subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of 
business model and contractual cashflows in which they are held. 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

amortised cost; 
FVOCI - debt investment; 
FVOCI - equity investment; or 
FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period 
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
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At amortized cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

At present, the Company does not have investments in any debt securities classified as FVOCI. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as 
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis. 

At fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as desoibed above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any 
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised 
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. 

Fi11ancial assets: Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is 
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 
provided to management. The information considered includes: 

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in 
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual 
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the 
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising 
cash flows through the sale of the assets; 
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's 
management; 
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those risks are managed; 
how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the 
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for 
~h sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

I 
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Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are 
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the 
assets. 

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 
Further, management also evaluates whether the contractual cash flm.vs are solely payment of 
principal and interest considering the contractual terms of the instrument. 

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the conh·actual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the 
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amow1t of contractual cash 
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flm·vs; 
terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 
prepayment and extension features; and 
terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse 
features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early 
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or 
premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount 
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) conh·actual interest 
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as 
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial 
recognition. 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
profit or loss. 

Financial assets 
amortised cost 

Equity investments 
FVOCI 

at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment 
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net 
gains and losses are recognised in ocr and are not reclassified to profit 
or loss. 
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Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVfPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and 
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of loan to the extent 
it is probable that some or all of the loan facility will be drawn down. The facility fee and related 
payments are accounted for as a transaction cost under Ind AS 109. The said facility fee is deferred 
and treated as a transaction cost when draw-down occurs; it is not amortised prior to the draw-down. 

iii. Derecognitio11 

Fi11ancial assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or 
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Further, the contractual terms of the 
existing financial assets are substantially modified, such modification is treated as the derecognition of 
original financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. Such newly recognized financial 
asset is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference in respective carrying amount, if 
any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the modification of a financial asset does not 
result in its derecognition, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated at 
original effective interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows 
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the 
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

iv. Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

c. Operating cycle 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. C~pera~ng cycle is 
the time from start of the project to their realization in cash or cash equivalents. -
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d. Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition aud measurement 
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs 
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials 
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its 
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of 
profit and loss. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure \'viii flow to the Company. 

iii. Derecognitio11 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The consequential gain or loss 
is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item 
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iv. Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives as prescribed under schedule II of the Act. 

e. Intangible assets 

z. Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such 
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

iii. Derecognition 
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecogn.ised on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an 
intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and he rying 
amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when ffi~Sf!~ is 
derecognised. -9. . 
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iv. Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible assets less their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation 
and amortisation in financial statement. 

f. foventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items 
held for use in civil construction work and / or production of inventories are not written down belo-w cost 
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The 
cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to 
their present location and condition. 

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes direct materials and labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on 
weighted average cost method. Trading goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on weighted average cost method basis. 

g. Impairme11t 

Impairment of financial instmments 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
financial assets measured at amortised cost; 
contract assets recognised under contract with customers; and 
financial assets measured at FVOCI including debt investments. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the follm·ving observable data: 
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more; 
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise; 
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; 

or 
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties . 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except 
for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured as 
12 month expected credit losses. 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected 
credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result horn all possible 
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve months expected credit losses 
a.re the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument isless than 12 
months) . ~ ··~ 
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.When determining whether the 
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinceinitial recognition and when estimating 
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is 
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. 111is includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forward looking information. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured 
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i .e. the difference between the cash flov\'S due to the 
Company in accordance with the conh·act and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive) . 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet. 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets . 

ii Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together 
into cash-generating units (CCUs). Each CCU represents the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CCUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CCU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

The Company's corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CCUs) 
do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable 
amount is determined for the CCUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CCU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment 
loss recognised in respect of a CCU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the CCU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or 
group of CCUs) on a pro rata basis. 

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the 
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or 
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
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h. Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscou.nted basis and are expensed as the 
related service is provided . A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g. Under short­
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

I. Provisio11s anti conti11gencies (otlzer tlzan for employee benefits) 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. 
The unvvinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not 
provided for. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is 
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision 
is reversed." 

"Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses." 

Contingencies 
Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the 
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, 
no provision or disclosure is made. 

j. Revenue from contracts with customer 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are 
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to 
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that 
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It 
excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent 

Service Concessio11 Arrangement 
Service concession arrangements (SCA) refers to the arrangement between the grantor (a public sector 
entity) and the operator (a private sector entity) to provide service that give the public access to major 
economic and social facilities utilising private sector funds and expertise. 

With respect to the SCA, revenue and cost are allocated betvveen those relating to the construction 
services and those related to the operation and maintenance services, and accounted for separately. 

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and 
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the n?-ture of the 
consideration. The intangible asset is used to the extent that the Company receives a right to charge the 
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users of the public service. The financial asset is used when the Company has an unconditional right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. 

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) contracts on hybrid annuity basis contain three streams of 
revenue- Consh·uction revenue, Financing income and Operations and maintenance (O&M) income. The 
construction stream of DBOT revenues are accounted for in the construction phase of DBOT, O&M 
income is recognised in the operating phase of the DBOT, while finance income is recognised over a 
concession period based on the imputed interest method. 

Revenue from construction of contracts is recognised by applying percentage of completion method after 
providing for foreseeable losses, if any. percentage of completion method is determined as a proportion of 
the cost incurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any 
on the contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of 
completion of the contract. While determining the amount of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and 
related incidental income not included in contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is 
reflected at cost that are expected to be recoverable till such time the outcome of the contract cannot be 
ascertained reliably and at realisable value thereafter. 

Contract balances 
Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services h·ansferred to the customer 
e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the 
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only 
the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company 
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities 
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Others 
Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

k. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses ·whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii) the 
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of 
lease and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset. 

a) As a lessee 

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses judgement 
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options). 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencemen~te. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial ai110Lmt of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
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incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 

underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying 
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the 
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the 

useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 

impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if 
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the 
commencement date, lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the 

lease payment made. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including 
in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the 

exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments 
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option. 

TI1e lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a 
lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re­
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the f{OU asset. Any gain or loss on 
modification is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the 

scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with 
the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications, 
discounting rates used for measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of 
all the assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an 

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

b) As a lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of 
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is 

classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

1. Recognition of interest income or expense, fosurance claim received 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrnment to: 

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or 
the amortised cost of the financial liability. 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted 
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 
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m. Income tax 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except 
to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in OCI. 

Current tax 
Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of 
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax 
Javis) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis 
or simultaneously. 

ii Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company 
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or 
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable 
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a 
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

Any tax credit available is recognised. as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset is 
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of deferred tax. 

Presentation of current and deferred tax: 
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, 
the current and deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. ln case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding 
current tax assets against cunent tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company. 

n. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset ·which necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

o. Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods 
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares 
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

In a capitalisation or bonus issue or a share split, ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders for no 
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the 
proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the 
beginning of the earliest period presented 

p. Operating segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company. 

q. Cash and cash equivaleuts 

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in 
hand, bank balances, unencumbered demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three 
months or less and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a component of 
cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement. 

"Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits/ (Loss) before tax is adjusted for 
effects of h·ansactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated." 

~ . 
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r. Standards notified but not yet effective 
Following are the amendments to existing standards (as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
on 23rd March, 2022) which are effective for annual periods beginning after 1st April 2022. The Company 
intends to adopt these standards or amendments from the effective date, as applicable and relevant. These 
amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements. This 
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further 
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Company when it will adopt the 
respective standards. 

Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - For items produced during testing/trail phase, 
clmification added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss and considered as part of cost of PPE. 
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets - Provisions on what constitutes 
cost of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not) is included . 
Ind AS 41 Agriculture - This aligns the fair value measurement in Ind AS 41 with the requirements 
of lnd AS 113 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and 
enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for 
the most appropriate fair value measurement. 
Ind AS 101 - First time Adoption of Ind AS - Measurement of Foreign Currency Translation 
Difference in case of subsidiary/associate/ JV's date of transition to Ind AS is subsequent to that of 
Parent. 
Ind AS 103 - Business Combination - Reference to revised Conceptual Framework is included. For 
contingent liabilities / levies, clarification is added on how to apply the principles for recognition of 
contingent liabilities from Ind AS 37. Recognition of contingent assets is not allowed. 
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it 
applies the '10 per cent' test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 

/ 
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4 Other financial assets (Unsecured considered good) 

Particulars 

Non~current 

Right to receive annui ty from c.:oncession grantor 

Current 
Right to receive a.rmuity from conc~ssion grantor 
Security and other deposits 

5 Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Non-current 

BJ lance \i:ith government authorities 

GST input receivable 

Current 

Advance to supplit"rs for goods and services 
Prepaid expenses 

Balance with government authorities 
IDS-GST 
GST input receivable 

6 Tax assets 

Particulars 

Non-current 
Ad vam:e tax (net of provision for tax ) 

O ~B 
0 UDAIPUR , ""; J -~ 
"\..°0:;::::;-:::::~,;.;' ./ 
~ 

Ref Note No. 

28 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

f i11 Lill.hs 

As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

1,10,570.69 
1,10,570.69 

6,85·1.09 

7!.38 
6,925.47 

1,17,496.16 

As at 
31 March 2022 

7,560.74 
7,560.74 

0.02 
132.59 

2,358.14 
1,899.51 
4,390.26 

11,951 .00 

1,15,394.18 
1,15,394.18 

9,385.75 

71.38 

9,457.13 
1,24,851.31 

f i11 Lnkl!s 

As at 

31 March 2021 

11,683.86 
11,683.86 

129.84 

1.9~1.61 

2,051.45 
13,735.31 

(in Lakhs 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

1,569.7ll 133.72 
1,569.70 133.72 

') 

~-

.J 
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7 Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Current 

Trade receivables 
Less: expected credit loss/ allowance for doubtful debts 

Break-up of Security details 
Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Recei\·ables - credit impaired 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Balance ;:is at begning of the year 

Add; A!lowance for the year 

Less: Adjustment during the year 

Balance as at end of the year 

Ref Note No. As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

282.<19 ril0.70 

282.49 610. 70 

282.49 610.70 

282.49 610.70 

Below is Trade receivabl es ageing schedule based on oustan_d_in~g~fr_o_m_d_u_e_d_a_te_o_f_p~•~y~m_en_t ________ _______________ _ 

Cur rent but ___ o_u_ts_ta_n_d_in_,g'-• f_o_r_fo_l_lo_w_·in-"g"'-p_er_io_d_s_f_ro_n_1_d_u_e_d_a t_e_o_f.,,.p_ay~·m_en_t __ 
Total not d ue Less than 6 months - 1_2 years 2_3 years More th:i.n 3 

6 mon th 1 year ye:i.rs 

31 March 2022 

Undisputed Trade R~eivables - cons.idered good 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have sibrnifictrnt 
incre,1se in credit risk 
Undisputed Trade rC'Ccivablc - credit i.n1paircd 
Disputed Trade recdvables - c0nsidert.'d good 
Di.-;putcd Trade receivables - credit impaired 
Total 

31 March 2021 

Undisputed Trade Receivdbles - considered good 

Undisputed Trade .Rffeivables - which hav~ significant 
increase in credit risk 

Notes:-

Undisputed Trade r!Xeivable - credit impaired 
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 
Disputed Tradt' receivables - credit impaired 
Total 

a) Trade Receivables Me non intere~t bearing. 

106.29 

106.29 

67.99 

67.99 

89.36 43.72 -13.12 282.49 

89.36 43.72 43.12 282.49 

455.88 43.12 610.70 

455.88 43.7~ 43.12 610.70 

b) No trade or otlwr receivablt> are due from direct0r:> or other officers of the company either sevt.'rally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other 
receh'c1ble nre due from firms or private companies respe<ti1.:ely in which •my director is a partner, a director or n member. 

Retention money re!Jting to construction contracts are included in above trade receivables as they are recoverable within the operating cyde of the Company . 
tin Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Retention money 

8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Balance with banks 

in current accounts 
Deposits v.rith original maturity of less than three months* 

* Deposits lien \.Vith banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSR..A.) and Major Maintenance Reserve Account 
(MMllA). 

9 Other bank balances 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Deposits \,,ith remaining maturity iess than 12 months# 

# Deposits lien \".'ith banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) and Major ~taintena CC(ll.lnt 

(MMRA) ,,. 

As at 

31 March 2022 

180.51 
180.51 

As at 

31March2022 

633.80 
8,497.42 
9,131.22 

7,00S.00 

As at 

As at 

31 March 2021 

520.82 
520.82 

As at 

31 March 2021 

l ,302.30 

1.302.30 

t tn LakJ1s 

As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

410.00 2,112.97 
·l'I 0.00 2,1.1 2.97 

410.00 
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10 Equity Shore capital 

Particulars 

Authorised 

3,89.00,000 equity shares of Rs. lll ea<h 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

3,59,00,000 equity sh dres of l\s. 10 each 

Reconciliation of equ ity share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Particulars 

At th~ commencement of the ye.:i r 
Add: Issued during the year 
At the end of the )'ear 

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5°/u equity shares in the Company 

Particulars 

Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held 

GR Infra projects Limited (Parent Comp.-Hw) 

Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the e nd of the year 

31 March 2022 

Numbers Amount 

3,88, 90,000 3,889.00 

3,88,90,000 3,889.00 

31 Morch 2022 

Numbers % of total share 
in class 

3.88,90,000 100.00 

As at 

31 March 2022 

3,890.00 

3,890.00 

3,889.00 
3,889.00 

As at 

31 March 2021 

3,890.00 

3,890.00 

3,889.00 
3,889.00 

? in Uikhs 

31 March 2021 

Numbers Amount 

3,88,90,C-Oll 3,889.00 

3,88,90,C-OO 3,889.00 

31 Morch 2021 

Numbers 3/o of total share 
in class 

3,88,90,0011 100.00 

As at Mach 31 , 2022 As at Mach 31, 2021 

Promoter name 

GR lnfraprojffts Limited 

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares: 

No. of 
Shares 
3,88,90,000 

%of total % Change 
shares durins the y~ar 

100 

No.of 
Shares 
3,88,90,000 

%of total % Change 
shci.res during tht year 

JOO 

Tiie Company has a sin gle class oj equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares ra11k equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company' s residual assets. 
The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The \'Oting rights of an ~uity shareholder on a poll (not on :-how of hands) are in 
proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rit;hts cannot lx• exercised in respect of shares on \.\1h1rb any call or other sums pre:;ently 
payable have not been paid.Failure to pay any amount cailed up on shares may lead to fo rfeiture of the sh,ires. 

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity share~ will be entitled to receive the residual asSf."'ts of the Company. remaining after distributi0n of ali 
preferentia l amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held. 

11 Other equity 

Balance as at I April 2020 
Profit for the year 

Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Profit for the year 
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 
Tota! comorehensive income for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Debenture redemption reserve (' ORR') 

Retained 
Earnings 

3.326.94 
6~'101.57 

9,628.51 

1,747.79 
(7,630.25) 

3,746.05 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve 

7,630.3 

7,630.25 

Tot.11 

3.3:!0.94 

6~'01.57 

9,628.51 

1,747:79 I 
- I 

11,376.30 

The reserve is created for rt:>dernption of non-t.:onvertible debentures in accordance w ith the sub-section (4) of section 71 of Liie Cornpardes Act, 2013 out of profits of 
the Company available for d ividend. distribut ion. Pu rsuant to CompJ:nies (Share Capital and Debentures} Amendment Rules, 2019 dated 16 August 2019, the 
requirement for creation ot DRR for listed company is done away with . Accord ingly. the Company has ttan...;ferred the accu mula ted DRR balance lo Retained 
E..unings. 

'V 

'"-
::; 40 

~u: 
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12 Non current borrowings 

Particulars 

Secured Loans - From Banks 
HDFC Bank Limited 
Punjab Natior.aJ Bank 
Syndicate B?.nk 
Allahabad Bank 

Debentures - Secured 

Secured, rated, freely tr.-insfer.rnble, listed, redeemabie, non convertible debentures 

Unsecured Loans 

loan from G R lnfr•projects limited (Parent Company) 

Total 

Non-Current portion of long term borro\·dngs 
Current maturities of long term borrowings 

Notes: 

Debt Covenants: 

Ref Note No. As at 

31 March 2022 

33,303.05 

33,303.05 

77,097.19 
77,097.19 

10,468.29 
10,468.29 

1,20,868.53 

1,13,183.77 
7,684.76 

1,20,868.53 

As at 

31 March 2021 

21.379.% 
38,028.48 

13,869.69 

19,543.06 
92,821 .19 

28,775.61 

28,775.61 

1,21,596.80 

1,16,077.07 

5,519.73 
1,21 ,596.80 

Non-current borrowings contains debt co\·cnents n:.•la ting to debt-equity ratio, debt co\.·eragc ratio, interest coverage ratio and total debts to net worth rati0. 
The Company has satisfied all the debts covenants prescriDed in the terms of respective loan/debenture agreement as at r~porling date. 

Undrawn borrowing facility 

Disclosure of undrawn borroi•.:ing facilities (excluding non· fund based facilities) tO\"-'ards future project5 to be executed by the Company is Rs Nil 
( 31 !\·larch 2021 Rs 4,489 lakhs) 

, ~B l 
c:> ,UDAIPUR / 
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Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Nott;is to l"he fi mmci.11 s ta h~men ts (continued ) 
fo r the y·c,1 r l~ndt!d 3 1 f\'l,1 n:h 2022 

12.l 8 01..-o wi ngs (conti nu l~d ) 

N ok: Na lun • \lf :wr:uril y, in tt.'n'st r<i li?., n· p;i ynwn1 ll~rms a nd l'llwr mf\lrmn til'll fo r horrl'Wi.ng~ 

Sr No !'a r ticu la r~ 

(A) Sel.' urcd lo;ins from b.-mks 

(i) HDFC B1rnh Umi tt.•d 

(it ) PU111,1h N.1tionul B.mk 

(11i) (',1n:lrn B,ink (t.' r:-. t\\'h i lt ~ Sv11d1ca ll' 
B.rnk) 

liv) lnc.linn B.mk {Erstw hil \~ Allahabad 
lbnk) 

(11) 51."'C:U l'('d, rnl'<:d. freclv lr;msforr.:1bh:, 
lis tt.•d, r\• dt.~t.· m;ible, l~\m l'OH\'t.·rli hlt.• 
Dd"ICntu r<.·~ 

Tot.i i 

:33,;:\(!3.!l5 

1:.·,u9·;. 19 

31 Marc h 2022 

Nun-Cu rn~ n t 

J l ,'.! IH 0,) 

7 1,.1<17 45 

Current 

2,085 02 

5,5'J ll . ~·. ~ 

Total 

2 1 ,J7~ . C)(J 

."\S,0'.!8.48 

l 1,tU19.l19 

l<J,5-l3.ll6 

3 1 M.nch 202·1 

Non-Current 

2(1,1)·15 56 

3~l,92352 

1J,00h.94 

18,325.45 

Current Sl•cu rity Rcpaynwnt t erm~ 

'1.334.·lll First dmr~~t.·s bv w"y o f hypo tl wcat io n Llf nil th t! f i '<t~d Mse ls / Movublc R\'Pd)l rnf~n t in 27 lrn lf-y t•a rl v itls ta ll inent fo r \•x1s ling lon n 
..i ~cl s prO!L'ClS hook debls,Opl'rnling c.i~ h flow n~ct!iva hlc revenut• rt>fiminct·d and 28 ha lt-yt'arh· msl;1 IJmcnl for th \" top up 

wh .1 l t~V\'r nnlun~, unc.1 1lccl rnpit.~I. Projl'cb bank .1ccoun t .md As!l-1gnmcnl t.lf loJn rcpayme nl rnni;in~; from :! 5U% to l .:l.5U';:, of lo.in 
a ll the VM<m ns i Sangam E"'p tv s-;w .i y r'riva lt• Lim i h~d ':;: n>;h l, in~u ra nce 1,1ken, a long w it h mo n thl y in t t~ r\~.'> I rnle fnm1 6.95% p .a. 
pohL'h~s and mkn~sl undt.•r ~1 1 1 tl1t• .1gre1-~mcnt rd .1ted lo tlw rn ·1.)kr l:;: .ind 
g u.1r.mlct! o r pt•rform.rnc1..• l>ond pro~• idt•d by .m y p;i rtv for .m y l.'()ntruc.·t 

rda tc d tu the JlfOJ l:!l'b Ill favo r of th i: borrower. rl edgt: or 51 ' ~. sha re or 

l!\]L lll y :;hMc 

2.H'l.1.96 Fi rs t dmrgc.•s by \"\o·,iy of hypo tlwc.·a ti o n t1r nll the fi'<(:d M:-ocb / Movu blL' l{<_.p.1yment in :_7 h,, lf-yc.·.wl y m~1,1llrncnl rommt·m·m1.! pw;t 

J t>.., l'b p r<IJl'ClS book dl•bts,opt'rilling c.\s h fl, ,w . rert!iva blc , revenue l'ompletion n( 111 or1.1loriu rn pl·1wd po~t COD tN the 

wh;1 l<?v ... ~ r natu re, unc.i lh:d t.•ap1 tal. Projects bank ;1c ... ·oun t .ind As~ 11~nment ,,f n :pay mcnt raniim!~ trom 250',~ lo ·l 50 '.~ of luan Iii ken , 
::i ll the Vnrnnasi Sri ngam fo .. prt:5~w.1y Pnva tl' Lim1!cd's nghL ms u ra nl'e ;ihJO)~ w it h month ly mlt.!r!.!SI ra1·t· from 6 .05'!:. p.<l 
pohdc:s ll nd 1nkn:sl tindc.· r ,111 !ht· c1grt•c mt:nt rt·l,1h'1J lo the prt1jc\·1:; <md 
i-;11 .1rnn tcl: or pi.•rf11rma nc1..· bo nd rrovidt•d by .my pnrly for .iny l'CJn l racl 
rdatc<l tu tl w projcl·ts m favo r of the lxllT•IW('L pll•d£C of 51 '.b ~ha re of 

eqmt y sh.ire 

862.'i'S F i r~ \" ch;:i rge..; by way nf lwpo tht<rn J·wn o f ~tll th~~ f1xt•d <1 . .,-1<.•I.:; /tv!,1v,1bk l<t·pav n1t•nt m 27 ha lf-yC'arly ins tn llnw n t co rnmcnc111!'1 p\1-:t 
aso;cts p w jcds b1•11k dcb1 ~,1lfH: rntmg cas h flow , l'l'Cl'1v,1li l\' . n'\'l'tlttc Cl1m p ldmn 11( morntonum pcrw.:I pos t COD for the 

wh.1tl!Vt'I' 11nt u rl!, 111K.1llcd t·.1p1ta!, Pr1l jccb bnn k .1cc:ount .mJ As'>1,;nmc nt tlf rcp.1ymt.~nt ran1tm1t !r\lnl 2.50% h> ·l .50% of lrnrn t.1kcn . 
•ill the V:ir<"l na~ i 5fl ll};i1 1ll Exp rc~swa y Privntc Limited '~ n~ht. !murnnrc '' "'11A w ith mo1Hhl.\· intcrc•;t rill c from H.65'.t p a . 
po lic il'S ;i nd int\: n •:ot under all the 01 ~;rc l:mc nt rc lulcd h> the p rojec ts nnd 
f~u nr:.inh•c M pcrronn:rnC"c l')()nd pr.w1d cd by any p.u ty for nny Clln lrnct 
n• l.ih' d to the p roJl'Ch in fav,,r i.lf the ll\)rrowcr, p le dge 1) i 5·1 ·~. -.b,wc ''' 
1•qt1 ily ::;han• 

1.~ 1 7.l> J Fir~l ch :ir1~es by way t)f hvp1)the\'.<'lli\m 1)f all the fo..ed 1.1s~ctt" ifvh)\.1,1bll! Rt•pavn wnl in 27 halt-y1~ar l y m:>ln llnwnl c:Mnmendng pt'SI 
i\ :'\S1~ ls pwjC\' (f; l•\l1\k dcbt::l,l'pt!fa lillft 1:ash now ' l'l'U'I V~1 h l \• . r\'\'t' llllC C\\m pl.•lion \lf nh)fitlor1u m J'lt~ fll'd pos l COD (or tlw 
wlub.>ver n11 t:1re , unc~ Jl t>d c.lpilal, Pro1cc1-. l;,111k acclm nt .lncl Assism1ll~ n t of rt>p.lyrnt~nt ra ng ini; from '.'?..50 'X, lll 11.50'.ll. of lo<m takt> n , 
;i ll liw \.'a ra n~b 1 :'::>Mlgn m Exp n?:;:swa\' Priv.1 lc Lunited':> right. 1n.;;urr11U:t' ..:i lo ng wi th rno n lhl v inte res t rnh• from 8.65~·. p .n . 

pnlki t•$ .ind intl•n •s t undeY- nil tlw ~f;r\~ L' llltml rela ted lt\ the p ro jl•c:ts nnd 

t"!.. Uar:rnl t.•c M performann~ t"tt1ntl pnw:dcd h)' uny p.irty for illl )' ll'tllr,11· t 
rd .lkd to th'-:! projects in fovor l•f the b(lrrowcr, pledge \l f 5 1 '!:.. <ihJrc or 

l'quitv .$hn rt· 

Firs t l'hn rgt~S by way of hypo\'h<;'C:cl l ion t1f odl !he fi xed CISscb / MO\':J blc 
.1s.." t' l.S proJi.'C ls bovk d\•bb,opa.1t111g t·,t.$h fl tl \.\' . rC\·c1\·..i bk· , i'l'"l'llUI." 
whatever n;iture, unt.' Cl lkd t:ap1t,1I, Project~ l;\Jnk ao:ount omd As:-i~n111 1..•nt \·11 
a ll tlw Vnnrna ~:i ~ :.rng,rn1 E>.p n :s.-.:w.;1y flriva tt· L1rnikd's nghl, :nsu nm C"e 
po l1 t.· 1 c· ~ a nt.I mll:n:..;t undt·r ,1!J Jiu· "1.~ l'l.'<:nwn t rl'l ,1 k d t·o tlw pm)t.'1.:h.; .md 

g u.u.1ntec o r p \•rform,inn· \Jond provi<lL•d l1r <HIV pil rl'\' for ,1n)' l'On t r.ll'I 
rel a te d to tlw pro1cct:;: in f.l"·or of lh<:' l>orrnwt>r. plL•di;c o f 51 '.'1. sha rt' of 

l'q u ity shan· 

Rcp.1 yrn ent in '.'?.7 hnlf-yc.1rly ms 1,1 Urnen l fo r ex isti ng !onn 
r\·finnnn:d .ind W hnl f-yt:.1r ly 1nsta ll nw nt for the tup up 

l\l;in rq>ay mt•n l rans,ing fro m 2.50 '.ll. lo 13.50 '1\. of loan 
la ken. nloni~ w ith h;:, lf ·yc.irly ml cr<•s t ra te fr,1rn li.f!n·::. p .. 1. 

] ,10,·1011.2·1 1,112,7 15.48_~1:!" n,B2l.19 B7,301.'l6 5,51_9.73 

(H) Uns l•curt.•d loa ns fro m otlll~ r 

I I) Loa n ir11m ( ; l< \n fra1.1roicc: ts Li mitt-d 

(l\m:n t Ct•mpnnv) 

·l 

10..l6fl.29 

10,468.29 
----··· 

1,20,868.SJ 

lOA6~ 29 ?.~.Ti'tl <1l 

l 0,468.2'.l 28.775.61 

1,13,183.77 7,68•1.7b 1,2.J ,5% .80 

28.775.r.1 Unsecu red 

28,775.61 -------
l ,'1(1,077.07 5,519.73 

~ . 
' . \ 

<"ll 

" 
;;. f"' ' 

--:: \" 

RJt\' or ln h.- rl'St : 9.00 '.\. f\ ! f tht.: _\'C<lr 2021-22, the o;a m e 

:. h.dl lll' de t1!TmuwJ o n n y\!ar!v ba :H-t ;1 .; p1:r th\! r ti.; t .,f 
hm<l~ 11f tlh~ Pn n: n t Ctllllpmw 
Terms anJ Source of rcp:1yn1 i.' nt : Jfopnv blc from the t'.lsh 
llow~ .w.1ilablc nftcr mect m14 th(! •;(:m M debt obli l4,1 tit•n, u1 
linC' w ilh lh~ wn tcrfall mcdm nir.m l.\S pe r dt.•s..·d hcd under 
lht· C\l lKt'SSHm i\grt.•emt~n t / Common I .t1an Agret~llll~lll 

;rnd Escrow 1\~~r1~,·me 11 l 
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13 Trade pay .1b les 

Particu lars 

Total outstanding dues of 

Micro entcrprisca and small enterpnscs (refer note b<'low) 
Creditors other than micro enterprises and smal! enterprises 

Ageing for trade payables from due date 

As at 31 March 2022 

Undisputed creditors other than micro enterrrise~ and small enterpr ises 
Disputed cr~itors ether than micro enterprises and :;mail ~nterprises 
Undisputed !i.·licro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dispu ted Micro enterprise5- and small en te rprise~ 

Total 

As at 31 March 2021 

Undisputed crcdi!tJr::. other than micro enlC'rp rise5- and small enterprise~ 
Disputed cred itors e ther than micro enterprises and smc1l! enterprises 
Undisputed Micro enterprises ond small enterprises 
Disputed Micro enterprise.$ ,1 nd small enterprises 
Total 

Notes:-

a) Trade p<iyable arc non in terest be<iring and gen{'raily have credit period of 30-90 days. 
b} For terms and conditions reiating to related party recc-1\·ables, refer Note 23 

c) Tot.al oul=>tanding dues of Micro and small cnterpri:;.es 

Trade payables 
Payable to related par ties 

d} Details of dues to micro and small enterpri~es as ddined under the MSMED Act, 2000 

Particulars 

The rrincipal amou nt and the interest due thereon (to l'e shown sepa.rately) 
remaining unpaid to an.y supplier at the end of each accounting year; 

The anwunt of interest paid by the buyer in terms lc'>f section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), nlong with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting yeor; 
ThE- amount of interest due and p.1yable for the pr:-r iod of delay in making 
payml:!nt ('1.vhich h,1s been p.1id l' u t b£'yond the appointC'd day du ring lhe y~a r) 

but i,yithout <'ldding the interest specified under the ~·iic ro, Small and Medium 
EnterprisC's Development Act. 2006; 
Tut.:> amount of intC'rest accrued and rcmainmg unpa?d at the end of each 
accounting y(•,1r; and 
The amount of fu rther interest remaining due and paydble even in the 
Sl!ccecding Yt:'•lrS. unti l such date when the interest dues above are t!.ctuJ.lly paid 
to the sma ll enterprise, for the purpose of J isallnw,mce of a <l cductible 
expenditure under sectwn 23 of the Mii.:ro. Small and Mediu m Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. 

Less than 1 year 

360.76 

360.76 

Less th:m 1 ye.:a.r 

3,860.15 

3,860.15 

Ref Note No. 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

As at 

31 March 2022 

360.76 
360.76 

More than 3 ye.us 

Mor~ than 3 years 

As at 

31March20'.?2 

31 March 2022 

<i11 L1khs 

As at 

3111-farch 2021 

3,8NI 15 
3,860.15 

Total 

360 lb 

360.76 

Total 

3.86(1.15 

3,860.15 

?in L1Jd1s 

As at 

31 March 2021 

31 March 2021 

TI1e ch_c;closure in respect of the amount payable to enterprise<:. which have provided goods and services tn the Company and which qu;ilily w1dcr tht~ definition of m.icro ,md 
small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and ~fodium Enterprises De\.·elopment Act, 2006 has. been made in the standalone financidl statements as at the reporting date 
based on the information received and available ~-\'ith the Comp.rmy . On the ba~is of such information, no inten~::.t is payable to any mlcrn, small and medium e:ntcrpriscs. 

14 Other financial lia.bilities 

Particulars 

Employee rela ted liabiUties 

15 Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Sta tutory li,1bilitic.•s 

TDS p•yablc 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

A s at 

31March2022 

O.:iO 
0.50 

As at 

31 March 2022 

141.86 
141.86 

As at 

31 March 2021 

0.40 
0.40 

tin L:khs 

Asat 

31 March 2021 

157.58 
157.53 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (con tinued) 
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16 Revenue from operations 

Particu lars 

Revenue from contrnct.6 with ('.UStomers 

Revenue from cnntracts with cust0mers (Utility) 

Revenue from contrnct.s with customers (COS) 

Rev~nue from contracts wiU1 customers (C1airn) 
Finance incnnte 

1 i Other income 

Particulars 

Inl("rest income 
- on other 
- on deposits with ban~ 

Clilim Income 

18 Construction costs 

Particulars 

Civil sub-contract ch.irges 
Ci\,il sub·contract charges (COS) 
Ci\'il sub-contract charges (Utillty) 
Ci\'il sub-contract charges {Claim) 
Civil sub--ccmtract charges(O& :i.-1) 
Lab0ur cess 

19 Employee benefits expense 

Pa rti cu lars 

Sala; ies, wages and bonus 

20 Finance costs 

Particulars 

lntl'rcst on Borrowing 
- banks 
- others 
- debenture 

Other borrmving cost 

21 Other expenses 

Particulars 

ln~urance expenc;es 
Clain1 expen..~ 
Payment to iluditors (ref~r note (i) bel0wj 
Legal and professional charges 
l ndert~ndent engineers fees 
Bank charges 
Elech·icity expen:;es 
Misc. expenses 
Annual custody fee 

(i} P.1yment lo auditors 

Particulars 

PcJyment to auditors (exclusive of GST) 

- as aud itor 
- Stdtutory audit 
- Other st•rvices 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note N o. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note N o. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

For the year ended 
31 7\-farch 2022 

l,977.o7 

95.24 

46.93 

9.49 

ll,fl40.h7 
13.170.20 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

14.52 
313.18 

327.70 

for t he year ended 

31 March 2022 

46.45 
94.29 
9.38 

500.0(1 
98.&i 

749.lKl 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

6.(l(I 

6.00 

For the year ended 

31 M a.rch 2022 

6,376.29 
1,374.96 
l,279.60 

673.39 
9,704.24 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

217.64 

0.60 
111.87 
40.03 

324.56 
5.66 
0.77 

7tll.13 

For t he year ended 

31 J\farch 2022 

0.60 

0.60 

~· i11 L.1khs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

11.)1075.75 

474.23 

159.79 

19,081.48 
38,791.25 

t 111 Lakl;i-

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

75.98 

30.15 
106.13 

? m Lrkhs 

For the yea r end ed 

31 March 2021 

17,999.16 
601.90 
-169.49 

67 .49 
19,!38.Cl4 

? Ill Lr.kh~ 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

4.90 
4.90 

? 111 Lakh~ 

For the year ended 

31 Ma rch 2021 

7,5-t7.79 
1,916.33 

6.35 
9A7•l47 

? 1!1 UlfJIS 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

21\J.(,~ 

26.92 
1.10 

22.41 
126.12 

0.05 
150.65 

0.89 
ll.81 

590.63 

(in L1khs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

0.30 
0.80 
1.10 
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22 Tax expense 

A. Income tax (income}/ expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

Current tax 

Curnmtt~ 

Deferred tax 
A!trthittablt· to-

Origination and re\'er.sill of temporarv differences (refer note D) 
lncome tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particula_rs 

Profit before tax 

Tclx using the Company's stcitutory tax rate 

Effoc t of: 

Impact of tax ordinan('(' 

Changes in (':>timal('S 

Otho rs 
Tax expense 

C. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

Nfovement in l'emporary differences 

As on 31 March 2022 

Particufars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financi.,11 instrument a! am0rti.5cd 
cost 

Sen·1i;e co1Kession income 
Unused ta.'\ losses 
Net deferred tax {assets)/ liabilities 

As on 31 March 2021 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying va lue and lax base i.n measurement of financial instr..:ment at <"HllOrtised 

cost 

Service concession income 
Unused tax losses 
Net deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities 

D. Recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabilities 

E. 

Mm•ement in temporary differences 

As on 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Difference 1n Cilrrying \·alue and tax bilie in n:easurement of financial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service concession income 
Unu$Cd tax losses 

As on 31 March 2021 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 
U-U.trument at amortised co~ t 

Service conces~ion income 
Unused tax los::;.es 
!vL•\T credit entitlement 

Unused tax losses 

Deferred tax 
(assets) 

(2,287.15) 
(2,287.15) 

Deferred tax 
(assets) 

(4,371.05) 

(4,371.05) 

31 March 2022 

589.74 
589.74 

31 March 2022 

:!,337.33 

588.31 

1.44 

589.i.5 

Deferred tax 
liabilities 

148.76 

6,342.01 

6,490.77 

Deferred tax 
liabilities 

156.85 

7,828.07 

7,9$4.92 

Balance as at Recognised in 
1 April 2021 profit or loss during 

the year 

156.85 

7,82H.07 

(4,371.05"; 
3,613.87 

(8.09) 

(1,486.£16) 
2,083.90 

589.75 

Balance as at necognised in 
l April 2020 profit or loss during 

the year 

206.116 

3,500.74 

{2,323.58) 
(1,161.1 2) 

22'.!.10 

(49.21 ) 

1t327.33 

(2,047.47) 
l, 161.12 

3,391.77 

31 March 2021 

3,391.77 

3,391.77 

ti11 LnV1s 
31 March 2021 

9,693.34 

2,439.62 

973.40 

(21.2 'i) 

3,391.ii 

t ;n LniJ:s 

Net deferred tax 
(.sscts) /l iabilities 

1-18.76 

6,342.01 
(2,287.15) 
4,203.62 

? i11 Lakh::: 
Net deferred tax 

(assets)/ liabili ties 

l56.85 

7,828.07 
(4,.371.05! 
3,613.87 

Balance as at 31 March 
2022 

H S.76 

6,342.01 

(2,287.15) 
4,203.62 

? in Lakf15 

B.dance as at 
31 March 2021 

156.85 

7,8'.!8.07 

(4,371 .05) 

3,613.87 

(in L7khs 

Particulars Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balanc~ as at 

31 March 2021 

AY2019-W 

AY 2020-21 

AY2021-22 

Total 

Unused tax losses recognised 

Carry Forward 
Losses 

9.087.56 

9,087.56 

9,087.56 

Expiry assessment 
year 

2027-2~ 

20'.!8-29 
2029-30 

Carry Fonvard 
Losses 

~.376.20 

5,603.14 
9,388.16 

17,367.50 

17,367.50 

E"<piry assessment year 

2027-28 
2025-29 

2029-30 

I 
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23 Related party disclosure 

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year 

(a) Parent Company: 

GR Infraprojects Limited 

(b) Key Management Personnel ("KMP"): 

r..·fr. Ajendra Kumar Agarwal - Director (resigned w.e.f 1 March 2021) 
Mr. Anand Rathj - Director (resigned w.e.f 1 March 2021) 
tvlr. Vikas Agarwal - Director 
Mr. Karan Agarwal - CFO (resif,'lled w.e.f 28 March 2022) 
Ms. Suhani Jain - Director (appoin ted w.e.f. 16 November, 2021) 

Ms. Riya Parakh - Director (resigned w.e.f. 2 November 2021) 
Mr. Chirag Gandhi - Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 1 April 2020) 
Mr.Varun Bhasin - Director 
tvlr. Ajendra Kumar Agarwal - CEO 
Ms. Namita Somani - CFO (appointed w .e.f 29 March 2022) 

B. Related party transactions with Parent Company and its closing balances 

The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management persomiel and their related parties were no more favourable 
than those available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar transactions w ith non-key 
management personnel rel<lted entities on an am1's length basis. 

The aggregate value of the Company's transactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and entities 
over which they have contro l or significant influence is as follows: 

Nahtre of transaction 

(a) Loan received 

(i) G R [nfraprojects Limited 
(b) Loan repaid 

(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 
(c) Construct.ion costs 

(i) GR lnfraprojects Limited 
(d) In terest Paid on unsecured loan 

(i) GR Infraprojects Limited 
(e) Remuneration 

(i) Chi rag Gandhi 

Particulars 

(a) Loan payable 

(i) G R [nfraprojects Limited 
(b) Trade payables 

(i) G R lnfrapro jects Limited 
(c) Balance outstanding (payable) 

(i) Chirag Gandhi 

(ill Lak/i,; 

Transaction value 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

2,100.22 11,177.37 

21,645.00 '.2 ,033.12 

650. 12 19,097.47 

1,374.96 1,916.33 

6.00 4.90 

Balance outstanding receivable/(payable) 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

10,468.29 28,775.61 

338.29 3,733.29 

0.50 0.40 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

24 Fair Value Measurements 

A. Accounting classification and fa ir values 

As at 31 March 2022 

Par ticulars 

Trade receivables 

Cash and c;:sh equi\'alents 

Other bank balance 

Other financial assets 
Total Financial assets 

Bornn"·ings 

Trade payable 

Other fincl!Kial liabilities 

Total Financial liabilities 

As at 31 March 2021 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 
Cash a nd cash equ ivalents 
Other bank balance 
Other financial assets 
TotaJ Financial assets 

Borrowings 
Trac!e pavable 
Other financial li<lbilities 
Total Financial li abilities 

FVTPL• 

FVTPL' 

•FVTPL= Fair value through profit and loss 

FVOCfH Amortised cost 

282.49 

9,131 .22 

410.00 

1,17,496.16 
1,27,319.87 

1,20,868.53 

360.76 

0.50 

1,21,229.79 

FVOC1•• Amortised cos t 

610.70 
1,302.30 
2,112.97 

l,2-l,851.31 
1,28,877.28 

1,21 ,596.80 
3,860.15 

ll.40 
1,25,457.35 

-FVOCI = Fair \·alue through other comprehensive incmne 

Total 

282.49 

9,131.22 

410.00 

1,17,496.16 
1,27,319.87 

l,20,868.53 

360.76 

0.50 

1,21,229.79 

Total 

610.70 
1.302.30 
2,112.97 

1,24,851.31 
1,28,877.28 

1.21,596.80 
3,860.15 

0.40 
1,25,457.35 

Level 1-
Quoted price 

in active 
markets 

Level I -
Quoted price 

in active 
markets 

Fair Value 

Level 2 - Level 3 -
Significant 
observa ble 

inputs 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

Fair Value 
Level 2 - Level 3 -

Significan t 
observable 

inputs 

Significa nt 
unobservable 

inputs 

(ii! Lrkhs 

Total 

? i11 Lakh> 

Total 

The fair vc1lues of the financial assets crnd fi nancial liabilities included in th€' !evel 2 categc)ry nbove h<Js been deterrnined in accordance ·with generally a('('t"pted 

pricing models based on a d iscounted cash flm""' ano lysis, , ,·ith the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties. 

TI1ere have been no transfers between level I and level 2 during the years. 

Valuation technique used to determin(' fair value: 
• inputs included in Level 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy an.:i based on prices quoted in stock exchange and/or NAV declared by the Funds . 
• Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and othe r recognised imtitutions such as FIMMDA/FEDAJ. 
• fnputs incl uded L11 Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued us ing acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash 
Flow Method. 
Note: All financidl insh11ments for '"'hich fair value is recognised or disclosed are categori3ed within the fair value hierarchy descri'bed a-; above, based on the 
lowest Je\·el input thdt is significant to the fair value measurement a.s a whole. 

25 Finandal instr uments risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's financial lia}:lilities comprise mainly of borrowings, tr.Jde and other payables. TQ~ Company's financial assets comprise mainiy of cosh and cash 
equi\•a!ents and other receivables. 

Credit ri$k is the risk that a counterparty \vill not meet its obligations under a financial instrurrient or customer contract, leading to cl financial loss. The Company 
is exposed to credit risk primari ly trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits \-Vith bank.s. The Company1s exposure and credit ratings of its 
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate vcJlue of tran.s:ictions is reasonably spread amongst the coun terparties. 

A. Market risk 

l\·tarket risk is the risk that changes in ma rket prict"S - such as foreign exchange rates. interest ratt~s and equity prices - will afft"Ct the company's income or the 
value of its holdings of fina ncial instruments. ~1arket risk is athibutable to all market risk sensitive financiai instruments. 
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B. Credi t risk 

Credit risk is the risk that ,1 counterparty will not meet its obligalions u_nder a financiai insl'rument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company 
is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits \\¥ith banks. The compar1y's exposure and credit ratings of its 
cow1terpc1rties are continuously rnonitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

The carrying amou..'1t of follnwing financial assets represenL..; the maxi mum credit exposure: 

Other fin ancial assets 

This comprises mainly of construction a.::.set receivable - Right for Annuity receivable from NHA.l. deposits with banks Credit risk arising from these 
cons tn1ction assets is limited and there is no collateral held agains t these because the counterparUes are I\TH.i\ l 

C. Currency risk 

The functional currency of the Compc1ny is L'ldian Rupees ("Rs."). The Company is not €)..posed to foreign currency risk 

D. Interest ra te risk 

Interest rate risk i ~ the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument ,..,,ill fluctuate beciluse of changes in market intere-st rates. TI1e 
Compnny is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations in interest rates. Company's borrowing includes unsecu red loiln taken loan from banks & the 
Parent Comp:rny. Summary of finilncial assets and financial liabilities has been provided below: 

Exposure to liqu idi ty risk 

The following are the remaining contractual rna tur ities of fimmcial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. 

Fixed~ra te instruments 

Financial assets 
Financial Habilitics 

Variab le~rate instru ments 

Financial assets 
Financial liabilities 

Interes t ra te sensitivity 

31 March 2022 

8,907.42 

1,17,·196.16 
1,20,868.33 

(ill Lnld1:5 

31 March 2021 

2,112.97 

1,24,531.31 
1,21,596.80 

Profit or loss is sensith·e to higher/ Im ... ·er interest e>.pense from Porro .. ,•ings as a result of change in interest rates. Tl1e following table demonstrates the sensitivity 
of floating rate financial instn1ments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates pro,·ided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points 
interest r<1te across aU yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the bc1lance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures 
outstanding as at that date. The year end billnnces are not necessa rily representative of the average debt outstunding during the period . 

Sensitivity analys is 

Interest rntc 

- increase by 100 basis points 

- decrease by 100 bnsis points 

E. Liqu idi ty risk 

t ii! L1khs 

Impact on profit before tax 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(33.72) 

33.72 

32.55 

(32.55) 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated \\ith its financial liabilities that arc settled by delivr1;ng 
cash or another financial asset. The C0mpany' s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when lhey arc due, under both normal and stressed cond.itiuns, \"·ithout incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to tht.• Company's reputation. 
TI1e Company invest in liquid mutual funds to met?l the imrnediate obligations. 

Exposure to liq ui d ity risk 

The following are the remaining conb·actual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date The amounts are gross and uncE.:;counted. 

as at 31 March 2022 

Borrowings (inci. current maturit ies) 

Tracie payables 
Other current financial liabilities 
Total 

as at 31 March 2021 

Borrcnvings (incl. curr€'nt milturitit•s) 

Trade payables 
Other current financial liabilities 
Total 

Carrying 
amou nt 

1,20.868.53 

360.76 
0.50 

1,21,229.79 

Carrying 
amou nt 

l ,21.596.80 

3,860.15 
0.40 

1,25,457.35 

Total 

1,20,86~.53 

360.76 
0.50 

1,21,229.79 

Total 

1,21 ,596.80 

3,860.15 
0.40 

1,25,457.35 

Contractual cash flows 

Less than 1 1-5 years 
year 

7,684.76 28,5~2.9~ 

360.76 
0.50 

8,046.02 28,582.95 

Contract ua l cash fl ows 

Less than 1 
year 

5,51 9.73 

3.860.15 
0.40 

9,380.28 

1-5 years 

24,l90.92 

24,1 90.92 

t Hl LnkJL"-

More than 5 
years 

84,600.82 

84,600.82 

More than 5 
years 

91,886.l5 

91,886.15 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

26 Capital managemen t 

For the purpose of the Company'.<; capital management, capital includes paid-up t"quity capital and all other equity reserve.5- at tributable to the equity holders of 
the Company. The prllnary 0bjeclive of the Company·., capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor 
and market confidence and tu sustain future development of the busine.5-s. Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders. 

The Company manage$ its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial 
co\·enants. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to inunediately ca!l loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the 
fincmcial CO\'enan ts of a. ny interest bearing loans and borrmving du.ring the year. To maintain or adjust the cc1pital structure. th._., Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders. return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company moni tors capital using Deht-Equity ratio. \·vhich is net debt 
divided by total equity. The Com.piiny's policy is to keep the net debt to equity ratio belO\"-' 3. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings. le:>s cash and short-term deposits. 

Particulars 

Totai borro1oving;; 
Less: cas.h and cash equivalents 
Adjusted net debt 

Equit}·' share capital 

Other equity 

Tota l equi ty 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 

31 March 2022 

1,20,868.53 
9,131. 22 

1,11,737.31 

3,889.00 

n,376.30 

15,265.30 

7.32 

No changes were made in the objt.:ctives, polici~ or processes for managing capital d uring the year ended 31 March 20:!2 and 31 J\•larch ~021. 

27 Ratio 

Current Ratio (in times) 
(Current assets/ Cu rrent liabilities) 

Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 
(Total Debt/ Total Equity) 
(fotal Debt = Debt comprises of current borrowings( includLrig cu rrent maturities of long term borr<'t\.1;ings), non current 

2 borrowings and. interest accrued on borrm·vings and exclu<le5 the unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the 
holding company (G R Infra projects Limited). 

3 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Total Equity (net \'\'Orth) = Equity share ca.pitJl+Other ~quity + unsecured borrowing tilken from the holding cmnp.any } 

Debt Service Coverage Rati o (in tin1es) 

{(Earning before interest and tax and depreciation)/(principal repayment of non-current borrowings (excluding repayment 
of unsecured borrm,vi.ng taken from the holding company) made during the period <ind finance costs)) 

Return on equity ratio (%) 
(Profit for tht.' period or yt."ar / Net ·worth) 

Inventory turnover rat io (in times) 
( RevenU1·.~ from operation ( <1nnualised) / Average fnventory) 

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) 
(Revenue from operation (annualised)/ Average account rcceivablej 
(A verage account receivable = Average trade receivables+ average unbilled revenue} 

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) 
(Purchases made duri ng the year (annualised)/ Average account payablej 

Net capital htrnover ratio (in times) 
{Revenue from operation (annualised) ; .._,,orking capital) 
(Working capital = Cun-enl assets - Current liabilities) 

Net profi t ratio {0/c) 

(Profit/ (loss) for the period/Total Income) 

Return on capital employed (%) 
1(1 (Profit before intrest and taxes for the period or year / Capital employed) 

(Capital employed = Total assets - Current liabilities) 

Return on Investment(%) 
11 (Profit for the year/ Total asse ts) 

31 March 2022 

2.58 

4.29 

0.90 

6.79% 

NA 

0.l2 

0.31 

1.0~ 

12.95% 

9.08 % 

1.24% 

? in L!rkhs 

31 March 2021 

1,2·1,596.80 

1,302.30 
1,20,294.50 

3,889.00 

9,62851 

13,517.51 

8.90 

31 March 2021 

l .63 

2 .19 

2.02 

14 .90~. 

NA 

0.36 

6.23 

6.47 

16.20 % 

14.39% 

<l.41 % 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial sta tements (continued) 
fo r the yea r ended 3·1 March 2022 

28 Disclosure p ttrSuant to Para 6 of Ind AS 115 for Service Concession Arrangements 

Name of enti ty Description of the arrangement Significant terms of the arrangement 

Varanasi 

Sangam 
Expressway 

Private Limited 

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) to Period of concC'S..c; ion: :2017-2035 

~esign, .build. np~rar: ru:d tran~fer basi.~: {"~BO~f Ann~ity"or Remunerati\°m : 40% dur ing ~onstructit)O period 
. Hybrid Annuity ·) tile prOJCd relatmg to SJ.),, Lamng of and bald.nee 60% in half vearlv annuity in 15 
~c:_n~ia : ' arc:m asi _Section of ~H -2 from km 7: 3.146 to km years as per concession ;gi·ee;Hent 
r8~.5-H \Approx./2.398 km) lil the Stale of Utlar Pradesh 
under NHDP Phase -V, which shall be pMtly financed by the 
Concessionaire who shdlJ recon:!r its investment and costs ll1\'t.>stmt>nt grant from conce~sion grantor: No 
tlu·ough payment made by the authority, L'1 accordance with 
th~ terrri..s and condition set in concession agreement entered Infrastructure return at the end of concession 
into. period : Yes 

ln\•estment and rene\·val oblig-ation:;: Nil 

Re-pricing dates: No 
Basis upon which rt"-pricing \_)f re-negotiation is 
determined: NA 

Premium payable to grantor: Nil 
!'COD Date: 02-11 -2020 

Annuity receivable from 
concession grantor {including 
Contract assets receivables) 

31 March 2022 

1,17.424.78 

31 March 2021 

1,24,779.93 



Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued ) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

29 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard {Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

A. Disaggregated revenue information 

i} Type of service rendered 

Sale of services 

Tot,1! 

ii} Revenue from contracts with customers dis.1ggregated based on geography 

indi <' 

Outside Lndia 

Total 

iii} Timing of Revenue recognition 

R~venue from Goods and Services transferred to customers at a point in timt­

Revenue from Goods and Services transferred to customers o\•er time 

Total 

B. Contract balances: 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

13,170.20 

13,170.20 

13,170.211 

13,170.20 

13,170.20 

13,170.20 

( m Laklis 
Year ended 

31 March 2021 

38,79125 

38,791.25 

38,791.25 

38,791.25 

38,791.25 

38,791.25 

The follO\\.'ing table provides mforrnation about recti\'abl~. cuntract assets and contrnct liabilities from the contracts ·with cuslomers. _________ ____ <_i;_: _Ln_k_h __ , 

Trade receivables 

Opening balance 

Closing b,1l~111ce 

The increase/ decrease in trade nxeivablcs is mainly due to inaeasc / dccn:<lSC in sak'S. 

Annuity receiv.1ble from concess ion gra.ntor (including Contract assets receivables) 

Opening balance 

Clo:;ing balance 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

610.70 

232.49 

1,24,779.93 

1,17.424.75 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

386.53 

610.70 

88,912.38 

l,24.779.93 

Contract assets/ finandal assets (anm.iity recievable from concession grantor) are recognised as per Appendix D to Ind AS 115, when the Company has c.n i.mconditicmal right to 
receive cash or an0ther financial asg.et from nr at the d irection of the grantN for the construction sen·ices. 

Contract liabilities 

Opening b,1lance 

Closing balance 

Contract liabUities includt advance from customers and transa1.."tion price alloca ted to unexpired sen·ice obligations 

C. The amount of revenue recognized from 

~Performance obligations satisfied in previous ye,1rs 

- Amolmts induded in contract li<1bilities at the beginning of the year 

D. Performance obligation 

i) SalC's of Sen·kes: 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

( in Lnkhs 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

The performance obligation is Silt;sfied over !im~ ~1s the assets is under control of customer and !hey simult~meousiy receives and consumes the benefits provided by thi.:· 
Company . Th~ Company recei v~d progressive payment toward provision of servic1:.'s. 

E. Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price: -------------' -'"-· _L_ih_':~_' 

Revenue as per contracted price 

Adjustments 

CldLms 

Variable cnnsideration - Perfonnance bonus 

Revenue from contract with customers 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

11,627.21 

1,542.99 

13,170.20 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

38,791.25 

38,791.25 



30 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Face \·alut: pC'r equity shar(' (in Rs.) 
(a) Profit for the ~·car .1 ttnbutab!{' to equity shareholders 
(b) Number of equity shares cH the beginning: of the year 
(c) Equity shares issued dunng the vear 
(d) Number of equi ty shares at the end of the year 
(e) \-Ve i ~hted average nllmber of equi ty shares fnr calculating bask EPS 
(f) \-Veighted avenge nw11ber of equity slMres fc1r calculating diluted EPS 

Earning-; Per Share (in Re;.) : 

Note: 

Basic earning per -;hare (a/ e) 
Diluted e<UTiing per share {a/f) 

Ref Note No. 

? 111 Lak/;s 

31March2022 31 March 2021 

10.00 10.00 
l ,7~7.79 6,301.57 

3,85,90,(J{)() 3,88, 90,000 

3,88,90,000 3,88,90,0DO 
3,i<-~,90.00(1 "l,~8.9(1,110(1 

3,81',9\l,OlY.I 3,88, 9o,nnn 

4.49 16.20 
449 lfl.20 

\Veighted average munber of e<.]Uity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued. during the 
year multiplied by the time \veighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of dayo; for wh1rh the specifo.: shar~ are outstanding: a.s a proportion of total number of 
da~·s during the year. 

31 Segment reporting 

Basis for segmen tation 

In accord<H1ce with lhe requ irements of Ind AS 108 · "Se:gme:nt Reporting", lht> Cornpany is primarily engaged in a business of civil construdion and hc1s no other primary 
report,1ble segments. The Managint:; Director of the Company allocate the resources and as.se~s the performance of the Comp,1ny. thus he is the Giief Operating Decision 
M,1 k1.-r (COD~v1). The CODM monito rs the 0perating resuit.'5 of the- businHs ,1s a singlt> segment, hence no s-eparatt· segmt>nt needs to bi.· dbclosed. 

lnformation about geographical areas 

As the Company operates in lndi,1 only, hence no s.eparate geographical segment i$ disclosed . 

1nfonnation about major customers 

Revenue of Rs 13170.2 \akhs an.: t.kriw:d from 5-ingk customt.·r (NH Al ) \,·hich <imounLc; to 10% or mort! of th(' Compzmy's revenue 

32 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

A Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

(a) Cldims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 

(i) Indirect tax matters 
(ii} Direct tax m.rners 
(iii) Civil matters 

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees : 

Guarantees given tu third parties 

Total 

B Commitments 

(a) Other Com .. 'Tlltments 

~ 111 Lakh::: 

31 March 2022 31 Morch 2021 

626.95 626.95 

33 The Company h.1s assessed the possible impact of COVID·19 pandemic on its business opernl'ions. liqutdity position and recoverability of its as....~l balances as al J\•larch 31, 
2022 bas.ed on the internal and external sources of inform<itiun upto the date of appro\'a l of these audited standalone fmMKial statement. Also, the nMnagement does not see 
any ri sks in the Comp<1ny's ability to ('Ontinuc as Cl going concern and mt'l1ti ng its liabil itiL'S as and whl·n tht.·y fal l due. Thl· Compziny has adl'quall' funds andjor unut1J ized 
fund-bast•d credit focilitic..-s available, to take care of any urgent requirement of funds. Accordingly. the:' Company bchcvt•s that tht!rc is nu material impact of Covid 19 on thc~e 
i.ludit<.•d standa!one financial sta t('rm·nt. Thl' final impal'l of COVfD-1 9 may bl' different fwm that C':i timc1tcd as at thl· dC1tc of appro\.'Cli of thl'SC audited stand.:'lion<.· finandal 
stah..•mcnt and hence managC'mi.:nt \.\-ill continue to monitor any mater ial change:; to thl' futur~ economlC conditions. 

34 Previous yeu figurc:; have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever consider ncc1..:.~SC1ry. 
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